



Faculty of Chemistry and Chemical Engineering

Contributions to the chemistry of organoelement compounds of selenium, tellurium and tin.

Nora STAN (married CHIOREAN)

Abstract PhD Thesis

Scientific Advisor Prof. Dr. Ing. Anca Silvestru

CLUJ-NAPOCA 2018

JURY

President:	Prof. Dr. Ion Grosu Universitatea Babeș-Bolyai, Cluj - Napoca
Scientific Adviser:	Prof. Dr. Ing. Anca Silvestru Universitatea Babeș-Bolyai, Cluj - Napoca
Reviewers:	Prof. Dr. Aurel Pui Universitatea Alexandru Ioan Cuza, Iași
	CSI Dr. Otilia Costișor Institutul de Chimie al Academiei Române, Timișoara
	Conf. Dr. Ing. Monica Venter Universitatea Babeș-Bolyai, Cluj - Napoca

Keywords: organoselenium compounds, triphenylteluronium salts, organotin compounds, chemical synthesis, structural investigation, hypercoordination, dithiocarbamato ligands

Date of public defence: 28.09.2018

Table of Contents

Introduction1			
Chapter 1.	Esters of diorganochalcogenoselenophosphinic acids,		
-	$Ph_2P(E)SeR'(E = S, Se)$	4	
1.1. Liter	ature data	4	
1.2. Original contributions		6	
1.2.1.	Synthesis	7	
1.2.2.	NMR spectroscopy	8	
1.2.3.	Single-crystal X-ray diffraction studies	13	
1.3. Conc	lusions	14	
References		14	
Chapter 2.	Triphenyltelluronium salts	16	
2.1. Litera	iture data	16	
2.2. Origi	nal contributions	25	
2.2.1.	Compounds with anionic organophosphorus ligands	25	
	2.2.1.1. Synthesis	25	
	2.2.1.2. Structural investigation	25	
	2.2.1.3. Single-crystal X-ray diffraction studies	31	
2.2.2.	Compounds with anionic organoantimony(III) ligands	33	
	2.2.2.1. Synthesis	33	
	2.2.2.2. Structural characterization	33	
2.3. Conclusions		37	
References		38	
Chapter 3.	Hypercoordinated diorganotin(IV) compounds	41	
3.1. Literature data		41	
3.1.1.	General aspects	41	
3.1.2.	Synthesis	44	
3.1.3.	Structural characterization	46	
3.1.4.	Applications	51	
3.2. Original contributions		52	
3.2.1.	Synthesis of organotin(IV) complexes	52	
3.2.2.	Structural characterization	53	
3.2.3.	Single-crystal X-ray diffraction studies	67	
3.3. Conc	lusions	72	
References		73	
Chapter 4.	Experimental	75	
4.1. General aspects75			
4.2. Synt	nesis	77	

Synthesis of [2-CH ₃ C ₆ H ₄]SeP(S)Ph ₂ (1)	77
Synthesis of [2-(Me2NCH2)C6H4]SeP(S)Ph2 (2)	78
Synthesis of [2-(MePr ⁱ NCH ₂)C ₆ H ₄]SeP(S)Ph ₂ (3)	79
[2-(Me ⁱ PrN(H ⁺)CH ₂)C ₆ H ₅][Ph ₂ P(S)O] ⁻ (3a)	79
Synthesis of [2-(Me ₂ NCH ₂)C ₆ H ₄]SeP(Se)Ph ₂ (4)	80
Synthesis of [Ph3Te][(SPPh2)(O2SMe)N] (5)	81
Synthesis of [Ph ₃ Te][{SP(OEt) ₂ }(O ₂ SC ₆ H ₄ Cl-4)N] (6)	82
Synthesis of [Ph ₃ Te][O ₂ PPh ₂] (7)	83
Synthesis of [Ph3Te][{OP(OEt)2}2N] (8)	84
Synthesis of [Ph ₃ Te][Ph ₂ SbCl ₂] (9)	85
Synthesis of [Ph3Te][2-(Me2NCH2)C6H4SbCl3] (10)	86
Synthesis of Me2Sn(S2CNMe2)Cl (11)	87
Synthesis of Me ₂ Sn(S ₂ CNEt ₂)Cl (12)	88
Synthesis of ⁿ Bu ₂ Sn(S ₂ CNMe ₂)Cl (13)	
Synthesis of ⁿ Bu ₂ Sn(S ₂ CNEt ₂)Cl (14)	89
Synthesis of [2-(Me2NCH2)C6H4]MeSn(S2CNMe2)Cl (15)	90
Synthesis of [2-(Me ₂ NCH ₂)C ₆ H ₄]MeSn(S ₂ CNEt ₂)Cl (16)	91
Synthesis of Me2Sn(S2CNMe2)(NCS) (17)	92
Synthesis of Me ₂ Sn(S ₂ CNEt ₂)(NCS) (18)	93
Synthesis of ⁿ Bu ₂ Sn(S ₂ CNMe ₂)(NCS) (19)	93
Synthesis of ⁿ Bu ₂ Sn(S ₂ CNEt ₂)(NCS) (20)	94
Synthesis of [2-(Me2NCH2)C6H4]MeSn(S2CNMe2)(NCS) (21)	95
Synthesis of [2-(Me ₂ NCH ₂)C ₆ H ₄]MeSn(S ₂ CNEt ₂)(NCS) (22)	96
Synthesis of [2-(Me2NCH2)C6H4] ⁿ BuSn(S2CNEt2)(NCS) (23)	97
Synthesis of [2-(Me2NCH2)C6H4]MeSn(S2CNMe2)2 (24)	98
Synthesis of [2-(Me ₂ NCH ₂)C ₆ H ₄]MeSn(S ₂ CNEt ₂) ₂ (25)	99
References	
Appendix	102

Introduction

The aim of the present work was the synthesis of new organometallic compounds of elements from the main groups (Se, Te and Sn), with bidentate ligands and/or organic functional groups that possess pendant arms capable for *C*,*N*-chelation towards the central atom (Se and Sn). Previously it was observed that in ionic compounds as $[Ph_3Te]^+[(XPPh_2)(YPPh_2)N]^-(X, Y = S, O)$, besides the cation-anion electrostatic interactions there are established O…Te and S…Te contacts in the range of the sum of the van der Waals radii of the two elements, which lead to an increased coordination number of the tellurium atom.⁴ In the studies presented in this work the behavior of some organophosphorus ligands towards the [Ph₃Te]⁺ cation was investigated, with regard to additional contacts that can lead to an increased coordination number at tellurium. For comparison, two triphenyltelluronium salts with organoantimony(III) anions were investigated also, which cannot establish other types of interactions with the tellurium atom than the electrostatic ones.

The studies were focused on organo-selenium, - tellurium and -tin compounds, not only for structural considerations, but also in the light of their potential applications, as mentioned further.

The chemistry of organoselenium compounds has become a field of research intensely studied in recent years due to the potential applications of these compounds in organic synthesis, biochemistry and nanomaterials with applications in microelectronics (semiconductors). Organoselenium compounds with a *N*,*N*-diorganobenzylamine functional group, in which the nitrogen atom of the pendant arm is capable of forming N \rightarrow Se interactions, showed higher catalytic properties and antioxidant activity than those substituted with simple organic functional groups.⁵ Recently, organoselenium(II) compounds have been used in radical-initiated polymerization processes as RAFT agents (Reversible Addition Fragmentation Chain Transfer Polymerization).⁶

Organtellurium compounds have also found applications in catalysis, biology and microelectronics.⁷ Tellurium compounds have thermoelectric properties or a special electronic behavior and for this reason efforts were made to obtain single source or dual source precursors for such nanomaterials.⁸

Organotin(IV) compounds are well known for their biological activity, wich is influenced by the nature of the functional groups attached to the metal atom, but also by the nature of the anionic ligands present in the molecule.⁹ The chemistry of hypervalent organotin(IV) compounds has evolved in the last years, following the synthesis and the

structural characterization in solution or in solid state of compounds containing ligands with one or more pendant arms such as $2-(Me_2NCH_2)C_6H_4$ or $2,6-(Me_2NCH_2)_2C_6H_3$. Tin(IV) dithiocarbamates have attracted interest as biologically active agents, as well as potential precursors for nanomaterials (tin sulfide) used in microelectronics.¹⁴

References

- 1. J. I. Musher, Angew. Chem., Int. Ed., 1969, 8, 54.
- (a) Kin-ya Akiba (Ed.), *Chemistry of Hypervalent Compounds*, Wiley-VCH, New York, 1999.
 (b) C. W. Perkins, J. C. Martin, A. J. Arduengo III, W. Lau, A. Alegria, J. C. Koci, *J. Am. Chem. Soc.*, 1980, 102, 7753.
- 3. N. W. Alcock, Adv. Inorg. Chem. Radiochem., 1972, 15, 1.
- 4. J. E. Drake, A. Silvestru, J. Yang, I. Haiduc, Inorg. Chim. Acta, 1998, 271, 75.
- 5. A. J. Mukherjee, S. S. Zade, H. B. Singh, R. B. Sunoj, Chem. Rev., 2010, 110, 4357.
- J. Moon, H. Nam, S. Kim, J. Ryu, C. Han, C. Lee, S. Lee, *Tetrahedron Lett.*, 2008, 49, 5137.
- 7. H. Taka, Y. Yamazaki, T. Shimizu, N. Kamigata, J. Org. Chem., 2000, 65, 2127.
- 8. Z. Rappoport, *The Chemistry of Organic Selenium and Tellurium Compounds, Patai's Chemistry of Functional Groups*, Vol. 4., John Wiley & Sons Chichester, England, **2013**.
- 9. A. G. Davies, M. Gielen, K. H. Pannell, E. R. T. Tiekink, *Tin Chemistry: Fundamentals, Frontiers and Applications*, John Wiley & Sons, **2008**.
- Sadiq-ur-Rehman, M. A. Choudhary, M. H. Bhatti, S. Ali, *J. Iran. Chem. Soc.*, 2012, 9, 35.
- 11. C. E. Carraher Jr., M. R. Roner, J. Organomet. Chem., 2014, 751, 67.
- 12. A. Ruzicka, L. Dostal, R. Jambor, V. Buchta, J. Brus, I. Cisarova, M. Holcapek, J. Holecek, *Appl. Organomet. Chem.*, **2002**, *16*, 315.
- R. A. Popa, A. Licarete, M. Banciu, A. Silvestru, *Appl. Organometal. Chem.*, 2018, 32, 4252.
- (a) D. J. Lewis, K. Punarja, O. Bakr, C. A. Muryn, M. A. Malik, P. O'Brien, *Inorg. Chem. Front.*, 2014, 1, 577. (b) C. E. Knapp, C. J. Carmalt, *Chem. Soc. Rev.*, 2016, 45, 1036.

Chapter 1. Esters of diorganochalcogenoselenophosphinic acids, $Ph_2P(E)SeR'$ (E = S, Se),

1.2. Original contributions

The aim of the present studies was the synthesis of new organophosphorus(V) compounds that contain both sulfur and selenium atoms in their structure, which could be further used as RAFT agents in polymerization reactions.

1.2.1 Synthesis

 $Ph_2P(S)SeTol-o$ (1) was prepared as presented in Scheme 1.4. Initially, the insertion of selenium into the C-Mg bond of the *in situ* generated Grignard reagent *o*-TolMgBr was performed, followed by the reaction of the *o*-TolSeMgBr with thiophosphinyl chloride, $Ph_2P(S)Cl$, thus leading to compound 1 as a slightly brown liquid.



Scheme 1.4.

Afterwards, a series of reactions were performed as presented in Scheme 1.5, in order to obtain compounds **2-4**, which contain organic functional groups with pendant arms bonded to the selenium atom. The products were isolated as white colorless or slightly yellow solids, which were characterized by multinuclear NMR spectroscopy (¹H, ³¹P and ⁷⁷Se where appropriate). For compounds **1** and **2** the ¹³C NMR spectra were also recorded.



Schema 1.5.

1.2.2. NMR spectroscopy

The ¹H NMR spectra of compounds **2** - **4** show multiplet signals in the aromatic region, characteristic for the *ortho, meta* and *para* protons belonging to the phenyl groups attached to the phosphorus atom and also signals corresponding to the aromatic protons belonging to the $[2-(Me_2NCH_2)C_6H_4]$ group. In the aliphatic region of the ¹H NMR spectra of compounds **2** and **4** singlet resonances can be observed, corresponding to the methyl protons from the N*Me*₂ groups; and also a singlet signal for the methylene protons in the *CH*₂N group. From these results, we concluded that the aliphatic region of the ¹H RMN spectra of these compounds don't provide data concerning the N \rightarrow Se intramolecular coordination in solution.



Fig. 1.3. ³¹P NMR signals for the starting material Ph₂P(Se)Cl (a) and compound 4 (b) (CDCl₃, 121 MHz)

The ${}^{31}P$ NMR spectrum (Fig. 1.3) of compound 4 confirms the presence of single bonds between P–Se and P=Se respectively, due to the presence of two corresponding pairs of satellites.

The ⁷⁷Se NMR spectrum (Fig. 1.4) of compounds **1** and **2** indicate the presence of P-Se couplings, as they appear as doublets.



Fig. 1.4. ⁷⁷Se NMR resonance signals for compounds **1** (a) and **2** (b) (CDCl₃, 58 MHz)

1.2.3. Single crystal X-ray diffraction studies

Structure of compound $[2-(Me^{i}PrN(H^{+})CH_{2})C_{6}H_{5}][Ph_{2}P(S)O]^{-}(3a)$.



Fig. 1.9. The molecular structure of compound **3a**. Hydrogen atoms are not shown for clarity. Thermal ellipsoids are shown with 30% probability.

The coordination geometry around the P and N atoms is distorted tetrahedral. Between the two ions formed by hydrolysis, the protonated amine $[(Me^iPrN(H^+)CH_2)C_6H_5]$ and Ph₂P(S)O⁻, besides the cation-anion electrostatic interactions, hydrogen bonds are also formed with the interatomic distance H···O = 1.647(3) Å having an intermediate value between $\Sigma r_{vdW}(H,O)$ (2.75 Å) and $\Sigma r_{cov}(H,O)$ (1.12 Å).²⁰

1.3. Conclusions

• The organophosphorus compounds 1- 4 were successfully synthesized and they could be used as RAFT agents. The synthesis of compound 1 has been performed using organomagnesium derivatives, while the synthesis of compounds 2-4 has been performed by an *ortho*-lithiation reaction, followed by insertion of selenium into the C-Li bond and subsequent reaction with diphenylthio/seleno phosphynil chloride.

• All syntheses were performed in argon due to the instability of the compounds in atmospheric conditions.

• The compounds were characterized by ¹H, ¹³C, ³¹P and ⁷⁷Se NMR spectroscopy. The ¹H and ¹³C NMR spectra show specific resonances for the expected chemical structures and they do not suggest any N \rightarrow Se intramolecular coordination.

• Together with compound **3**, the derivative **3a** formed by decomposition and hydrolysis was also isolated.

• Compound **3a** was characterized in solid state by single crystal X-ray diffraction and it's ionic structure was evidenced.

References

- J. Moon, H. Nam, S. Kim, J. Ryu, C. Han, C. Lee, S. Lee, *Tetrahedron Lett.*, 2008, 49, 5137.
- (a) C. Konn, F. Morel, D. L. Beyou, P. Chaumont, E. Bourgeat-Lami, *Macromolecules*, 2007, 40, 7464.

(b) J. Nicolasa, G.Yohann, C. Lefay, D. Bertin, D. Gigmes, B. Charleux, *Progress in Polymer Science*, **2013**, *38*, 63.

- 3. (a) N. V. Tsarevsky, K. Matyjaszewski, *Chem. Rev.*, 2007, 107, 2270.
 (b) J. Ran, L. Wu, Z. Zhang, T. Xu, *Prog. Polym. Sci.*, 2014, 39, 124.
- 4. (a) C. L. McCormick, A. B. Lowe, Chem. Res., 2004, 37, 312.

(b) C. Barner-Kowollik, T. P. Cavis, J. P. A. Heutes, M. H. Stenzel, P. Vana, M. J. Whittaker, *Polym. Sci., Part. A: Polym. Chem.*, **2003**, *41*, 365.

- (c) X. Tian, J. Ding, B. Zhang, F. Qiu, X. Zhuang, Y. Chen, *Polymers*, 2018, 10, 318.
- 5. (a) D. Gigmes, D. Berin, S. Marque, O. Guerret, P. Tordo, *Tetrahedron Lett.*, **2003**, *44*, 1227.

(b) J. Moon, H. Nam, S. Kim, J. Ryu, C. Han, C. Lee, S. Lee, *Tetrahedron Lett.*, **2008**, *49*, 5137.

- 6. T. Kimura, T. Murai, J. Org. Chem., 2005, 70, 952.
- C. Barner-Kowollik, T. P. Cavis, J. P. A. Heutes, M. H. Stenzel, P. Vana, M. J. Whittaker, Polym. Sci., Part. A: Polym. Chem., 2003, 41, 365.
- R. T. A. Mayadunne, E. Rizzardo, J. Chiefari, Y. K. Chong, G. Moad, S. H. Thang, Macromolecules, 1999, 32, 6977.
- 9. D. J. Keddie, G. Moad, E. Rizzardo, S. H. Thang, *Macomoleculles*, 2012, 45, 5321.
- M. Benaglia, M. Chen, Y. K. Chong, G. Moad, E. Rizzardo, S. H. Thang, *Macromolecules*, 2009, 42, 9384.
- A. Theis, M. H. Stenzel, T. P. Davis, M. L. Coote, C. Barner-Kowollik, Aust. J. Chem., 2005, 58, 437.
- Y. K. Chong, J. Kristina, T. P. T. Le, G. Moad, A. Postma, E. Rizzardo, S. H. Thang, Macromolecules, 2003, 36, 2256.
- 13. J. Lai, D. Filla, R. Shea, Macromolecules, 2002, 35, 6754.
- 14. E. Chernikova, P. Terpugova, C. O. Bui, B. Charleux, Polym. Int., 2002, 51, 1117.
- 15. G. Moad, J. Cheifari, J. Kristina, A. Postma, R. T. A. Mayadunne, E. Rizzardo, S. H. Thang, *Polym. Int.*, **2000**, *768*, 278.
- S. H. Thang, Y. K. Chong, R. T. A. Mayadunne, G. Moad, E. Rizzardo, *Tetrahedron Lett.*, 1999, 40, 277.
- (a) A. Alberti, M. Benaglia, M. Laus, K. Sparnacci, *J. Org. Chem.*, 2002, 67, 7911.
 (b) J. L. Hodgson, K. A. Green, M. L Coote, *Org. Lett.*, Vol. 7, 2005, 7, 4581.
 (c) D. Gigmes, D. Bertin, S. Marque, O. Guerret, P. Tordo, *Tetrahedron Lett.* 2003, 44, 1227.
- J. Fossey, D. Lefort, J. Sorba, *Free Radicals in Organic Chemistry*; Masson: Paris, France, 1995.
- 19. M. W. Schmidt, P. H. Truong, M. S. Gordon, J. Am. Chem. Soc. 1987, 109, 5217.
- 20. N. W. Alcock, Adv. Inorg. Chem. Radiochem., 1972, 15, 1.

Chapter 2. Triphenyltelluronium salts

2.2. Original contributions

2.2.1. Compounds with anionic organophosphorus ligands

2.2.1.1. Synthesis

This study was focused on the synthesis of some new triphenyltelluronium salts with organophosphorus ligands through metathesis reactions between Ph₃TeCl and the potassium salts of the corresponding organophosphorus acids, respectively ionic compounds such as $[Ph_3Te]^+L^-$ (L = $[(Ph_2PS)(MeSO_2)N]^-$, $[{(EtO)_2PS}(4-ClC_6H_4SO_2)N]^-$, $[{(EtO)_2PO}_2N]^-$, $[Ph_2PO_2]^-$). The reactions were carried out at room temperature with a 1:1 molar *ratio* of the two reactants (Scheme 2.12).

Compounds 5 - 8 are ionic species, soluble in polar solvents, containing $[Ph_3Te]^+$ cations and organophosphorus anions. The potassium salts were prepared according to literature.³³⁻³⁶

$$\begin{array}{rcl} Ph_{3}TeCl &+ & [(Ph_{2}PS)(MeSO_{2})N]K & & \hline CH_{2}Cl_{2} \\ \hline -KCl & & Fh_{3}Te[(SPPh_{2})(O_{2}SMe)N] \\ Ph_{3}TeCl &+ & [(\{EtO\}_{2}PS)(4-ClC_{6}H_{4}SO_{2})N]K & \hline CH_{2}Cl_{2} \\ \hline Ph_{3}TeCl &+ & Ph_{2}P(O)OK & \hline CH_{2}Cl_{2} \\ \hline Ph_{3}TeCl &+ & Ph_{2}P(O)OK & \hline CH_{2}Cl_{2} \\ \hline Ph_{3}TeCl &+ & [(\{EtO\}_{2}PO)_{2}N]K & \hline CH_{2}Cl_{2} \\ \hline Ph_{3}TeCl &+ & [(\{EtO\}_{2}PO)_{2}N]K & \hline CH_{2}Cl_{2} \\ \hline Ph_{3}Te[(OP\{OEt\}_{2})_{2}N] \\ \hline Ph_{3}Te[(OP\{OEt\}_$$

Scheme 2.12.

2.2.1.2. Structural investigations

NMR spectroscopy

The four compounds **5-8** were characterized by NMR spectroscopy (¹H, ¹³C, ³¹P and ¹²⁵Te), mass spectrometry and molar conductivity.

In the aromatic region, the ¹H NMR spectra of the four compounds show characteristic signals for the *ortho, meta* and *para* protons of the phenyl groups attached to the tellurium atom. In the case of compounds **5** and **7**, signals corresponding to the protons in the phenyl groups attached to the phosphorus atom can be also observed.

The 125 Te NMR spectra (Fig. 2.10) showed singlet signals corresponding to the [Ph₃Te]⁺ cation.

Mass spectrometry

The mass spectra are consistent with the ionic structure of these compounds. In the case of all studied compounds, the ESI+ mass spectra showed the corresponding base peak for $[Ph_3Te]^+$ cation with a m/z value of 361.02, while the ESI- spectra showed peaks corresponding to the organophosphorus anions.

Molar conductivity

The molar conductiviity of the compounds in DMSO was found to be lower than in the case of the starting material Ph₃TeCl ($\Lambda_M = 79.9 \text{ S} \cdot \text{cm}^{-1} \cdot \text{mol}^{-1}$), which in turn is also lower than that of KCl completely dissociated in water (0.01 M solution, $\Lambda_M = 141 \text{ S} \cdot \text{cm}^{-1} \cdot \text{mol}^{-1}$)³⁷⁻³⁹ and consistent with 1:1 electrolytes. These behavior suggests an incomplete dissociation and the existence of Te···Cl interactions in the case of Ph₃TeCl,⁴⁰ and Te···O/S interactions respectively in the case of the investigated compounds.



Fig. 2.10. ¹²⁵Te NMR spectra for compounds **5** – **8** (CDCl₃, 126.33 MHz)

2.2.1.3. Single-crystal X-ray diffraction studies

The molecular structure of compound 7. *Ph*₂*P*(*O*)*OH* structure

The $[Ph_2PO_2]^-$ anion and the free acid $Ph_2P(O)OH$ interact with the tellurium atom through the oxygen atoms, which together with the three C–Te bonds, determine a distorted

square pyramidal coordination geometry around the tellurium atom, with one phenyl group in apical position.



Fig. 2.13. The molecular structure of compound 7 ⋅ Ph₂P(O)OH. The hydrogen atoms are not shown for clarity. Thermal ellipsoids are shown with 50% probability.

2.2.2. Compounds with anionic organoantimony(III) ligands

2.2.2.1. Synthesis

Ionic compounds containing organoantimony anions were also synthetized (Scheme 2.14).





Compounds **9** and **10** were characterized by NMR spectroscopy (¹H, ¹³C and ¹²⁵Te), mass spectrometry and molar conductivity.

2.3. Conclusions

• The synthesis of triphenyltelluronium compounds 5 - 8 was performed by salt metathesis reactions between Ph₃TeCl and the potassium salts of the corresponding organophosphorus acids.

• Compounds 9 and 10 were prepared by transferring the Cl⁻ anion from Ph_3TeCl to Ph_2SbCl , and to 2-(Me_2NCH_2)C_6H_4SbCl_2 respectively, so that the coordination number of the antimony atom increases with one unit.

• All synthesized compounds were characterized by ¹H, ¹³C, ³¹P and ¹²⁵Te NMR.

• The ¹H and ¹³C NMR spectra of compound **10** do not indicate the existence of any $N \rightarrow Sb$ intramolecular interaction.

• The ³¹P and ¹²⁵Te NMR spectra showed only one singlet signal in all the studied compounds, with the exception of compound $Ph_3Te[(OP{OEt}_2)_2N]$ (8), for which the ³¹P NMR spectrum showed two signals in a 1:1 ratio of intensity, which suggest the non-equivalent nature of the two phosphorus atoms, probably due to O…Te interactions established between the $[Ph_3Te]^+$ cation with one of the oxygen atoms bonded to the phosphorus atom in the organophosphorus ligand.

• Molar conductivity values obtained in DMSO suggest ionic structures corresponding to 1:1 electrolytes for compounds with organoantimony anions, while for compounds with organophosphorus ligands the significantly lower values indicate weak interactions between Te and the ligand in the range of the sum of the van der Waals radii for Te and oxygen, in addition to the electrostatic ones.

• ESI- mass spectra are consistent with the ionic structure of these compounds. In the ESI+ mass spectra the base peak has a m/z value of 361.02, corresponding to the [Ph₃Te]⁺ cation, while the ESI- mass spectra showed base peaks corresponding to the organophosphorus anions (**5** – **8**), and the organoantimony(III) anions (**9** and **10**).

• The molecular structure obtained by single crystal X-ray diffraction for compound $Ph_3Te[O_2PPh_2]\cdot Ph_2P(O)OH$ (**7**·**Ph_2P(O)OH**) showed strong Te····O interactions between the triphenyltelluronium cation, the Ph_2PO_2 -anion and the free acid Ph_2PO_2H . The monodentate nature of the two ligands towards the tellurium atom generates the distorted square pyramidal coordination geometry.

References

- 1. A. Cahours, Justus Liebigs Ann. Chem., 1865, 135, 352.
- 2. C. Lederer, Ber. Dtsch. Chem. Ges., 1911, 44, 2287.
- 3. R. F. Ziolo, D. D. Titus, J. Appl. Cristallogr., 1976, 9, 506.
- 4. R. F. Ziolo, K. Pritchett, J. Organomet. Chem., 1976, 116, 211.
- 5. D. D. Titus, J. S. Lee, R. F. Ziolo, J. Organomet. Chem., 1976, 120, 381.
- 6. J. S. Lee, D. D. Titus, R. F. Ziolo, J. Chem. Soc., Chem. Commun, 1976, 501.
- 7. J. S. Lee, D. D. Titus, R. F. Ziolo, Inorg. Chem., 1977, 16, 2487.
- 8. K. J. Irgolic, Organotellurium Compounds, 1990, E12b, 676.
- 9. W. H. H. Gunther, J. Nepywoda, J. Y. C. Chu, J. Organomet. Chem., 1974, 74, 79.
- 10. T. M. Klapötke, B. Krumm, P. Mayer, H. Piotrowski, I. Schwab, M. Vogt, *Eur. J. Inorg. Chem.*, **2002**, 2701.
- 11. D. Hellwinkel, G. Fahrbach, Chem. Ber., 1968, 101, 574.
- 12. D. P. Rainville, R. A. Zingaro, J. Organomet. Chem., 1980, 190, 277.
- 13. F. Becker, Justus Liebigs Ann. Chem., 1975, 180, 257.
- 14. A. Osuka, H. Suzuki, Tetrahedron Lett., 1983, 24, 5109.
- 15. T. Kemmitt, W. Levason, Organometallics, 1989, 8, 4303.
- 16. X. Huang, L. Xie, H. Wu, J. Org. Chem., 1988, 53, 4862.
- 17. T. N. Srivastava, R. C. Srivastava, M. Singh, Indian J. Chem. Sect. A, 1980, 19, 435.
- 18. K. Lederer, Ber. Dtsch. Chem. Ges., 1920, 47, 1430.
- 19. E. Krause, G. Renwanz, Ber. Dtsch. Chem. Ges., 1929, 62, 1710.
- 20. G. A. Casagrande, C. Raminelli, E. S. Lang, S. de Souza Lemos, *Inorg. Chim. Acta*, **2011**, *365*, 492.
- 21. N. Petragnani, Tellurium in Organic Synthesis, Academic Press, Inc. San Diego, CA, 1944.
- 22. F. H. Musa, W. R. Mc.Whinnie, J. Organomet. Chem, 1978, 159, 37.
- 23. N. S. Dance, W. R. Mc. Whinnie, J. Mallaki, Z. Monsef-Mirzai, J. Organomet. Chem, 1980, 198, 131.
- 24. N. J. Hill, W. Levason, G. Reid, A. J. Ward, J. Organomet. Chem., 2002, 642, 186.
- 25. A. B. Shein, A. N. Nedugov, Prot. Met., 2000, 36, 240.
- 26. S. Santos dos Santos, E. S. Lang, G. Manzoni de Oliviera, J. Organomet. Chem., 2007, 692, 3081.
- 27. K. K. Verna, A. Saini, O. P. Agrawal, Asian J. Chem., 1991, 3, 70.
- 28. J. E. Drake, A. Silvestru, J. Yang, I. Haiduc, Inorg. Chim. Acta., 1998, 271, 75.
- 29. A. Silvestru, I. Haiduc, Polyhedron, 1995, 14, 2047.
- 30. J. E. Grake, M. L. Y. Wong, J. Organomet. Chem., 1989, 377, 43.

- A. K. Singh, J. K. Basumatary, T. P. Singh, B. Padmanabhan, J. Organomet. Chem., 1992, 424, 33.
- H. S. Breunig, T. Koehne, O. Moldovan, A. M. Preda, A. Silvestru, C. Silvestru, R. A. Varga, L. F. Piedra-Garza, U. Kortz, *J. Organomet. Chem.*, 2010, 695, 1307.
- 33. M. Szabo, D. Ban, C. Rat, A. Silvestru, J. E. Drake, M. B. Hursthouse, M. E. Light, *Inorg. Chim. Acta*, 2004, 357, 3595.
- 34. D. Oltean, A. Pöllnitz, A. Silvestru, Polyhedron, 2013, 53, 67.
- 35. D. Fenske, R. Mattes, J. Lons, K. F. Tebbe, Chem. Ber., 1973, 106, 1139.
- 36. W. H. H. Gunther, J. Nepywoda, J. Y. C. Chu, J. Organomet. Chem., 1974, 74, 79.
- 37. Y. C. Wu, W. F. Koch, K. W. Pratt, J. Res. Natl. Inst. Stand. Technol., 1991, 96, 191.
- 38. Y. C. Wu, W. F. Koch, D. Feng, L. A. Holland, E. Juhasz, E. Arvay, A. Tomek., J. Res. Natl. Inst. Stand. Technol., 1994, 99, 241.
- 39. K. W. Pratt, W. F. Koch, Y. C. Wu, P. A. Berezansky, Pure Appl. Chem., 2001, 73, 1783.
- 40. R. F. Ziolo, M. Extine, Inorg. Chem., 1980, 19(10), 2965.
- 41. J. Emsley, Die Elemente, Walter de Gruyter, Berlin, 1994.
- 42. L. M. Opris, A. Silvestru, C. Silvestru, H. J. Breunig, E. Lork. Dalton Trans., 2003, 4367.
- 43. G. Becker, O. Mundt, M. Sachs, H. J. Breunig, E. Lork, J. Probst, A. Silvestru, Z. Anorg. Allg. Chem., 2001, 627, 699.

Chapter 3. Hypercoordinated diorganotin (IV) compounds

3.2. Original contributions

This chapter presents the contributions of this work to the chemistry of organotin(IV) compounds with dithiocarbamato and thiocyanato ligands.

3.2.1. Synthesis of the organotin(IV) complexes

New organotin(IV) complexes were prepared as presented in Schemes 3.4 and 3.5. The organotin complexes 17 - 23 were obtained by salt metathesis reactions, in two-steps (Scheme 3.4). Diorganotin(IV) dichlorides were treated with sodium diorganodithiocarbamates in a 1:1 molar ratio, thus obtaining compounds 11 - 16, which were further reacted with KSCN to give compounds 17 - 23.

$$R^{1}R^{2}SnCl_{2} \xrightarrow{1:1}_{R = Me, x = 1,5}_{R = Et, x = 3} R^{1}R^{2}Sn(S_{2}CNR_{2})Cl$$

$$R^{1} = R^{2} = Me, R = Me (11), Et (12)$$

$$R^{1} = R^{2} = ^{n}Bu, R = Me (13), Et (14)$$

$$R^{1} = 2 - (Me_{2}NCH_{2})C_{6}H_{4}, R^{2} = Me, R = Me (15), Et (16)$$

$$R^{1}R^{2}Sn(S_{2}CNR_{2})Cl \xrightarrow{KSCN} R^{1}R^{2}Sn(S_{2}CNR_{2})(NCS)$$

$$R^{1} = R^{2} = ^{n}Bu, R = Me (17), Et (18)$$

$$R^{1} = R^{2} = ^{n}Bu, R = Me (19), Et (20)$$

$$R^{1} = 2 - (Me_{2}NCH_{2})C_{6}H_{4}, R^{2} = Me, R = Me (21), Et (22)$$

$$R^{1} = 2 - (Me_{2}NCH_{2})C_{6}H_{4}, R^{2} = ^{n}Bu, R = Et (23)$$
Scheme 3.4.

Compounds **24** and **25** were prepared by reacting the diorganotin(IV) dichlorides with sodium diorganodithiocarbamates in a 1:2 molar ratio (Scheme 3.5).

$$R^{1}R^{2}SnCl_{2} \xrightarrow{R = Me, x = 1,5}_{R = Et, x = 3} R^{1}R^{2}Sn(S_{2}CNR_{2})_{2}$$

$$R^{1}R^{2}Sn(S_{2}CNR_{2})_{2}$$

$$R^{1}R^{2}Sn(S_{2}CNR_{2})_{2}$$

$$R^{1}R^{2}Sn(S_{2}CNR_{2})_{2}$$

$$R^{1}R^{2}Sn(S_{2}CNR_{2})_{2}$$

$$R^{1}R^{2}Sn(S_{2}CNR_{2})_{2}$$

$$R^{1}R^{2}Sn(S_{2}CNR_{2})_{2}$$

$$R^{1}R^{2}Sn(S_{2}CNR_{2})_{2}$$

$$R^{1}R^{2}Sn(S_{2}CNR_{2})_{2}$$

$$R^{1}R^{2}Sn(S_{2}CNR_{2})_{2}$$

Scheme 3.5.

The compounds were isolated as colorless microcrystalline solids, with the exception of compounds **13**, **14**, **19**, **20** and **23**, substituted with "Bu groups, which were isolated as oils.

The obtained compounds were investigated by NMR spectroscopy, mass spectrometry and also IR spectroscopy for the solid compounds. For some of the obtained compounds, the molecular structures were determined by single crystal X-ray diffraction.

The ¹H and ¹³C NMR resonances corresponding to the organic groups bonded to the tin atom are accompanied by ${}^{1}H - {}^{117/119}Sn$ and ${}^{13}C - {}^{117/119}Sn$ satellites, respectively. Based on the coupling constants obtained from the NMR spectra of the compounds substituted with two aliphatic groups, the C–Sn–C angle was calculated in solution and a coordination geometry was proposed for the studied compounds. For compounds with two alkyl groups attached to the tin atom, a trigonal bipyramidal coordination geometry was proposed, with both substituents in equatorial position. For compounds **17** and **18**, the C–Sn–C angle value calculated in solution is similar to the one determined in solid state by single crystal X-ray diffraction.

In Fig. 3.18 are presented the ¹H and ¹³C NMR resonances for compound **17**, accompanied by the characteristic satellites.



Fig. 3.18. ¹H NMR (a) and ¹³C NMR (b) resonances for the *Me*₂Sn group in the spectra of compound **17** (CDCl₃)

Mass spectrometry

ESI+ mass spectra recorded for compounds 11 - 16 in methanol showed a maximum intensity peak (100 %) at m/z values corresponding to $[M-Cl]^+$ ions. For compounds 17 - 23 the base peak (100 %) was observed for the $[M-NCS]^+$ ions.

IR spectrometry

IR spectra of compounds with SCN⁻ ligands showed very intense v(CN) bands around 2050 cm⁻¹ and v(CS) bands in the 754 – 798 cm⁻¹ interval, supporting the isothiocyanate behavior of the SCN⁻ ligand in solid state³⁴, which can also be observed in the molecular structures of compounds **17**, **18** and **22** determined by single-crystal X-ray diffraction.

Thermal behavior

The thermal behavior of compounds 17, 18 and 25 was investigated by thermogravimetric analysis. The experiments were carried in non-isothermal conditions, within a temperature range of 20 - 1000°C, with a heating rate of 10° C/min., in air.

3.2.3. Single-crystal X-ray diffraction studies

The molecular structures for compounds **17**, **18**, **22** and **25** were determined by single crystal X-ray diffraction.

The molecular structure of compound 17 is presented in Fig. 3.26.



Fig. 3.26. Molecular structure of Me₂Sn(S₂CNMe₂)(NCS) (**17**). Hydrogen atoms not shown for clarity. Thermal ellipsoids are shown with 30% probability.

The coordination geometry around the Sn atom was found to be that of a distorted trigonal bipyramid and it is determined in the equatorial plan by the two carbon atoms C1 and C2, corresponding to the methyl groups bonded to tin and the S1 atom corresponding to the dimethyldithiocarbamato group, while the axial positions are occupied by the S2 and N2 atoms of the isothiocyanate ligand (S2–Sn1–N2 152,63(12)°).

In the packing of the crystal the molecules are associated in *zig-zag* polymeric chains by bridging of the NCS⁻ ligand (NCS···Sn 4.02 Å *vs*. $\Sigma r_{vdW}(S,Sn)$ 4.05 Å¹⁵) (Fig. 3.27).



Fig. 3.27. Polymeric association in Me₂Sn(S₂CNMe₂)(NCS) (17)

The molecular structure of compound **22** is presented in Fig. 3.30. The coordination geometry around the tin atom was found to be distorted octahedral and it is determined by the

bidentate behavior of the dithiocarbamato ligand, the *C*,*N* chelating behavior of the [2- $(Me_2NCH_2)C_6H_4$] group and the two monodentate ligands, the methyl group and isothiocyanate group respectively. A strong N \rightarrow Sn intramolecular interaction was observed, the interatomic distance having a value of 2.55(3) Å.



Fig. 3.30. Molecular structure of $[2-(Me_2NCH_2)C_6H_4]MeSn(S_2CNEt_2)(NCS)$ (22).). Hydrogen atoms not shown for clarity. Thermal ellipsoids are shown with 30% probability.

3.3. Conclusions

• Compounds 11 - 16 of the type $R^1R^2Sn(S_2CNR_2)Cl$ were obtained by reacting diorganotin(IV) dichlorides with sodium diorganodithiocarbamates in a 1:1 molar ratio.

• The treatment of compounds 11 - 16 with KSCN in a 1:1 molar ratio led to complexes 17 - 23, of the type $R^1R^2Sn(S_2CNR_2)(NCS)$.

• Compounds 24 and 25, $R^1R^2Sn(S_2CNR_2)_2$ were obtained by reacting diorganotin(IV) dichlorides with sodium diorganodithiocarbamates in a 1:2 molar ratio.

• The prepared compounds were characterized by multinuclear NMR spectroscopy (¹H, ¹³C, ¹¹⁹Sn). For compounds containing aryl groups with pendant arms, the ¹H and ¹³C NMR spectra do not suggest any N \rightarrow Sn intramolecular coordination in solution. For the Me₂NCH₂ groups in compounds **21** – **23**, broad singlet signals were observed in the NMR spectra recorded at room temperature, thus suggesting that either these groups do not coordinate to the tin atom, or they are involved in a rapid fluxional process.

• The ¹H and the ¹³C NMR spectra for compounds 11 - 14 and 17 - 20, with aliphatic groups bonded to the tin atom, showed the corresponding resonance signals

accompanied by ${}^{1}H - {}^{119}Sn$ and ${}^{13}C - {}^{119}Sn$ satellites, respectively. The C–Sn–C angle could be calculated based on the ${}^{1}H - {}^{119}Sn$ and ${}^{13}C - {}^{119}Sn$ coupling constants and a distorted trigonal bipyramidal coordination geometry could be attributed for these compounds in solution.

• The methyl and the ethyl groups found in the dithiocarbamato ligands were found to be equivalent at room temperature for all the compounds, with a single set of characteristic signals in the ¹H and ¹³C NMR spectra, suggesting the bidentate behavior of these ligands in solution. For compound **25**, while the two dithiocarbamato groups are equivalent, the protons corresponding to the CH_2CH_3 groups are diastereotopic and showed two multiplet resonances (ABX₃ system) in the ¹H NMR spectrum at room temperature.

• The ¹¹⁹Sn NMR spectra presented a single singlet signal for every studied compound, so that it does not suggest an isothiocyanato behavior of the SCN⁻ ligand.

• The IR spectra recorded for compounds containing the SCN⁻ ligand showed a very intense band at approx. 2050 cm⁻¹ assigned to v(CN) stretching vibration and a band in the 754 – 798 cm⁻¹ region corresponding to the v(CS), suggesting the isothiocyanato behavior of the SCN⁻ ligand in solid state.

• The mass spectra (ESI+) recorded for compounds 11 - 16 revealed a base peak with a m/z value (100%) corresponding to [M-Cl]⁺, and for compounds 17 - 23 a m/z (100%) value corresponding to [M-SCN]⁺.

• The molecular structures for compounds **17**, **18**, **22** and **25** were determined by single crystal X-ray diffraction studies. Distorted trigonal bipyramidal coordination geometry was found around the tin atom for compounds **17** and **18**. A closer look in the packing of the crystal revealed that the molecules are associated by NCS bridging groups between the tin atoms, thus forming polymeric chains.

• A distorted octahedral coordination geometry was found for compounds 22 and 25; the coordination number of the tin atom increased to 6 in compound 22 and 7 in compound 25, due to the *C*,*N* chelating behavior of the 2-(Me₂NCH₂)C₆H₄ group, by strong N \rightarrow Sn intramolecular interactions.

• The dithiocarbamato ligand behaves as a bidentate ligand in all the investigated compounds, both in solution and in solid state.

• The thermal behavior of compounds 17, 18 and 25 was investigated by thermogravimetric analysis, the obtained curves indicating a continuous loss of mass in the temperature range of $150 - 350^{\circ}$ C through consecutive endothermic and exothermic processes.

The final products can be assimilated with SnS₂ and SnO₂, comparable with the existing literature data for other organotin(IV) dithiocarbamates.

References

- 1. E. Frankland, J. Chem. Soc., 1849, 2, 263.
- 2. W. J. Pope and S. J. Peachey, Proc. Chem. Soc., 1903, 19, 290.
- A. G. Davis, Organotin Chemistry, Second Edition, Wiley-VCH Verlag GmbH & Co. KgaA, 2004.
- P. Svec, Z. Ruzickova, P. Vlasak, J. Turek, F. de Proft, A. Ruzicka, J. Organomet. Chem., 2016, 801, 14.
- 5. A. Ruzicka, R. Jambor, J. Brus, I. Cisarova, J. Holecek, Inorg. Chim. Acta, 2001, 323, 163.
- 6. G. van Koten, J. T. B. H. Jastrzebski, J. G. Noltes, J. Organomet. Chem., 1978, 148, 233.
- B. Kasna, R. Jambor, L. Dostal, L. Kolarova, I. Cisarova, J. Holecek, *Organomet.*, 2006, 25, 148.
- 8. G. van Koten, J.G. Noltes, Advan. Chem. Ser., 1976, 157, 275.
- R.A. Varga, A. Rotar, M. Schurmann, K. Jurkschat, C. Silvestru, *Eur. J. Inorg. Chem.*, 2006, 1475.
- 10. R. A. Varga, M. Schurmann, C. Silvestru, J. Organomet. Chem., 2001, 623, 161.
- 11. A. Rotar, R. A. Varga, K. Jurkschat, C. Silvestru, J. Organomet. Chem., 2009, 694, 1385.
- 12. R.A. Varga, K. Jurkschat, C. Silvestru, Eur. J. Inorg. Chem., 2008, 708.
- 13. Kin-ya Akiba (Ed.), Chemistry of Hypervalent Compounds, Wiley-VCH, New York, 1999.
- 14. N. W. Alcock, Adv. Inorg. Chem. Radiochem., 1972, 15, 1.
- 15. J. Emsley, Die Elemente, Walter de Gruyter, Berlin, 1994.
- A. Ruzicka, V. Pejchal, J. Holecek, A. Lycka, K. Jacob, *Collect. Czech. Chem. Commun.*, 1998, 63, 977.
- 17. P. Novak, Z. Padelkova, L. Kolarova, I. Cisarova, A. Ruzicka, J. Holecek, *Appl. Organometal. Chem.*, **2005**, *19*, 1101.
- (a) P. Svec, P. Novak, M. Nadvornik, Z. Pedalkova, I. Cisarova, L. Kolarova, A. Ruzicka, J. Holecek, J. Fluorine Chem., 2007, 128, 1390;
 - (b) J. Bares, P. Novak, M. Nadvorník, R. Jambor, T. Lebl, I. Cisarova, A. Ruzicka, J. Holecek, *Organometallics*, 2004, 23, 2967.

- (a) A. Ruzika, Z. Padelkova, P. Svec, V. Pejchal, L. Ceslova, J. Holecek, J. Organomet. Chem., 2013, 732, 47;
 - (b) R. Rippstein, G. Kickelbick, U. Schubert, Monatsh. Chem., 1999, 130, 385.
- 20. C. Coza, A. Stegarescu, R. Şuteu, A. Silvestru, J. Organomet. Chem., 2015, 777, 71.
- I. Haiduc, D. B. Sowerby, *The Chemistry of Inorganic Homo- and Heterocycles* Academic Press, London, New York, **1987**.
- P. Svec, P. Leinweber, M. Erben, Z. Ruzickova, A. Ruzicka, J. Organomet. Chem., 2017, 845, 90.
- 23. (a) T. P. Lockhart, W. F. Manders, J J. Zuckerman, J. Am. Chem. Soc., 1985, 107, 4546;
 (b) T. P. Lockhart, W.F. Manders, Inorg. Chem. 1986, 25, 892;
 (c) J. Holecek, A. Lycka, Inorg. Chim. Acta, 1986, 118, L15.
- 24. R. A. Varga, C. Silvestru, C. Deleanu, Appl. Organometal. Chem., 2005, 19, 153.
- 25. G. van Koten, J. T. B. H. Jastrzebski, J. G. Noltes, J. Organomet. Chem., 1979, 177, 283.
- M. Biesemans, J. C. Martins, R. Willem, A. Lycka, A. Ruzicka, J. Holecek, *Magn. Reson. Chem.*, 2002, 40, 65.
- 27. M. Gielen, A.G. Davies, K. Pannell, E. R. T. Tiekink, "*Tin Chemistry: Fundamentals, Frontiers, and Applications*", John Wiley & Sons, Chichester, **2008**.
- A. Ruzicka, L. Dostal, R. Jambor, V. Buchta, J. Brus, I. Cisarova, M. Holcapek, J. Holecek, *Appl. Organomet. Chem.*, 2002, 16, 315.
- 29. M. Nath, R. Yadav, G. Eng, P. Musingarimi, Appl. Organomet. Chem., 1999, 13, 29.
- Z. Padelkoca, T. Weidlich, L. Kolarova, A. Eisner, I. Cisarova, T.A. Zevaco, A. Ruzicka, J. Organomet. Chem., 2007, 692, 5633.
- T. Weidlich, L. Dusek, B. Vystrcilova, A. Eisner, P. Svec, A. Ruzicka, *Appl. Organomet. Chem.*, 2012, 26, 293.
- P. Svec, A. Eisner, L. Kolarova, T. Weidlich, V. Pejchal, A. Ruzicka, *Tetrahedron Lett.*, 2008, 49, 6320.
- 33. S. Chandra, A. Ruzicka, P. Svec, H. Lang, Anal. Chim. Acta, 2006, 577, 91.
- K. Nakamoto, *Infrared and Raman Spectra of Inorganic and Coordination Compounds*, Part B, 6th Edition, Wiley, New Jersey, **2009**, p. 120.
- 35. A. K. Sharma, Thermochim. Acta, 1986, 104, 339.
- 36. D. Perry, R. A. Geanangel, Inorg. Chim. Acta, 1975, 13, 185.
- 37. J. O. Adeyemi, D. C. Onwudiwe, E. C. Hosten, J. Saudi Chem. Soc., 2018, 22, 427.
- G. Barone, T. Chaplin, T. G. Hibbert, A. T. Kana, M. F. Mahon, K. C. Molloy, I. D. Worsley, I. P. Parkin, L. S. Price, *J. Chem. Soc., Dalton Trans.*, 2002, 1085.